
Page 1 of 3 
 

 
 

IMPORTANT NOTICE REGARDING  
PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING & PARTICIPATION   

 
City Council will Meet Electronically on April 26, 2021 

 
On March 20, 2020, City Manager Gregory Rose declared a State of Emergency for the City of University 
City due to the COVID-19 Pandemic.  Due to the ongoing efforts to limit the spread of the COVID-19 virus, 
the April 26, 2021 meeting will be conducted via videoconference. 
 
Observe and/or Listen to the Meeting (your options to join the meeting are below): 
 
Webinar via the link below: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84263288695?pwd=V1NuYmZTVGZjREYyWjJ5ZW5vNURaZz09 
Passcode: 694161 

 
Live Stream via YouTube: 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ 
 
Audio Only Call   

Or iPhone one-tap : 
        US: +19292056099,,84263288695#  or +13017158592,,84263288695#  
Or Telephone: 
        US: +1 929 205 6099  or +1 301 715 8592  or +1 312 626 6799  or +1 669 900 6833  or +1 253 215 
8782  or +1 346 248 7799  or 888 788 0099 (Toll Free) or 877 853 5247 (Toll Free) 
Webinar ID: 842 6328 8695 
    International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kbrTEAsUu8 
 

Citizen Participation and Public Hearing Comments: 
Those who wish to provide a comment during the "Citizen Participation" portion as indicated on the City 
Council agenda; may provide written comments to the City Clerk ahead of the meeting. 
 
ALL written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments 
may be  sent via email to: councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – 
Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will be provided to City Council prior to the meeting.  Comments 
will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting.  
 
Please note, when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also 
note if your comment is on an agenda or non-agenda item. If a name and address are not provided, the 
provided comment will not be recorded in the official record.  

The City apologizes for any inconvenience the meeting format change may pose to individuals, but it is 
extremely important that extra measures be taken to protect employees, residents, and elected officials 
during these challenging times. 

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE 

Monday, April 26, 2021 
6:30 p.m. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84263288695?pwd=V1NuYmZTVGZjREYyWjJ5ZW5vNURaZz09
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCyN1EJ_-Q22918E9EZimWoQ
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kbrTEAsUu8
mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


Page 2 of 3 
 

 
 
 
A.    MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 

B. ROLL CALL 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. April 12, 2021 – Study Session – Flood Warning System and Minority Participation Policy 
2. April 12, 2021 – Regular Meeting 

 
E. APPOINTMENTS to BOARDS & COMMISSIONS 

1. Sylvia Morris is nominated to the Civil Service Board replacing James Stephenson’s expired term by 
Councilmember Stacy Clay 

2. James Nowogrocki is nominated for reappointment to the Civil Service Board by Councilmember Jeff 
Hales 

3. Bobette Patton is nominated to the Economic Development Retail Sales Tax Board replacing Robert 
Kuhlman’s expired term by Mayor Terry Crow 

 
F. SWEARING IN to BOARDS & COMMISSIONS 

1. Edward Nickels was sworn into the Historic Preservation Commission at City Hall on April 12, 2021. 
 

G. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION  
Procedures for submitting comments for Citizen Participation and Public Hearings: 
ALL written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments may be  sent via email 
to:  councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  Such comments will 
be provided to City Council prior to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official record and made accessible to the 
public online following the meeting.  
Please note, when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Please also not if your comment is on 
an agenda or non-agenda item. If a name and address are not provided, the provided comment will not be recorded in the 
official record. 

 
H. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. Re-Allocation of Funds – 2019 and 2020 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
 

I. CONSENT AGENDA 
1. Project 1481 – Sidewalk and Curb Replacement Project 

 
J. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

1. Third Quarter Financial Report  
2. Facility Use Agreement – Farmers Market 
3. Conditional Use Permit (PC-21-05) – Convenience Store – 8326-8328 Olive Blvd. 

 
K. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

1. BILL 9430 - AN ORDINANCE CALLING A BOND ELECTION IN THE City OF UNIVERSITY CITY, 
MISSOURI 

 
L. NEW BUSINESS 
 RESOLUTIONS 

1. Resolution 2021-6 – A Resolution Approving a First Amendment to the Rights-of-Way Use Agreement 
 
 
 

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE – ZOOM MEETINGS 

Monday, April 26, 2021 
6:30 p.m. 

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


Page 3 of 3 
 

M. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 
1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 
3. Boards, Commissions and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

  
N. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 
O. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal actions, causes 
of action or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential or privileged communications 
between a public governmental body or its representatives or attorneys. 

 
P. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
Posted 23rd day of April 2021. 
 
LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 

 





 

Page 1 of 7 
 

On March 20, 2020, City Manager Gregory Rose declared a State of Emergency for the City of 
University City due to the COVID-19 Pandemic.  Due to the ongoing efforts to limit the spread of 
the COVID-19 virus, the April 12, 2021 meeting will be conducted via videoconference. 

 
STUDY SESSION  

VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE 
Flood Warning System and 

Minority Participation Policy 
April 12, 2021 

5:30 p.m. 
 

AGENDA  
Requested by City Manager  
 

1. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
At the Study Session of the City Council of University City held via videoconference, on Monday, 
April 12, 2021, Mayor Terry Crow called the meeting to order at 5:31 p.m. 
 
In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present: 
 
   Councilmember Stacy Clay 
   Councilmember Aleta Klein 
   Councilmember Steven McMahon 
   Councilmember Jeffrey Hales 
   Councilmember Tim Cusick 
   Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 
 
Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose; City Attorney, John F. Mulligan, Jr.; Director 
of Public Works, Sinan Alpaslan; Director of Finance, Keith Cole; Commissioners Eric Stein and 
Todd Thompson, of the Storm Water Commission. 
 

2. CHANGES TO REGULAR AGENDA 
Mr. Rose requested that Item H-3; (Conditional Use Permit (PC-21-05), Convenience Store at 8326-
8328 Olive Blvd.), be moved to the April 26th meeting. 
 

3. EARLY WARNING SYSTEM 
Mr. Alpaslan stated members of the Storm Water Commission are present to provide Council with 
an update on the Flood Early Warning System. 

 
Commissioner Stein stated based on all the facts ascertained by the Task Force their written report 
presented to Council last year recommended that the City implement its own Flood Warning System 
instead of waiting for the USACE. 
 
 Background 

• Both the USACE and the City’s Storm Water Task Force (now commission) have 
recommended a flood warning system; (FWS). 

• The Task Force found that significant resources for a system are already in place. 
 Extensive USGS stream gauge & MSD rain gauge data for our watershed exists.  This is 

required to develop a basis for predicting floods. 
 Expertise exists on the Task Force for analyzing this data. 
 Advances in technology make the equipment required affordable. 
 These factors would allow the City to develop its own system rather than wait on the 

uncertainty and cost of a USACE system. D - 1 - 1



Page 2 of 7

Components of a Flood Warning System 
• An established protocol for the prediction of flooding based on rainfall.
• Rain gauges.  Must be located in the watershed of the problem stream due to the localized

nature of rainstorms.
• Stream gauges (sometimes).  In our case not, because the River Des Peres (RDP) rises too

quickly.
• Data logging equipment to record rain gauge readings.
• Telemetry capability for transmitting the data to a control center.
• A control center to collect, record, and analyze the data, and issue alarms when rainfall

exceeds a predetermined threshold that is predictive of flooding.
• A system for disseminating warnings to the public, along with established emergency

protocols.

U City's System - Prediction Protocol 
• Commission member Dr. Robert Criss; Professor of Earth & Planetary Science, built an

extensive database and developed statistical protocols for flood prediction.
• Data included 10 years of 5-minute interval data from the USGS stream gauge in Heman Park

and six MSD rain gauges in or near our watershed (thanks to MSD for access)…..over 7
million data points.

• Experimentation showed a statistically reliable basis for flood prediction exists.

U City's System - Rain Gauges 
• Three enterprise-level, automated rain gauges (NexSens G2-Rain Alert Systems), with solar

power packs distributed across our 9 square mile watershed.
 Wilson buyout tract, at Wilson & Drexel (operational).
 Fogerty Park, near the parking lot at 82nd St (operational).
 Indian Meadows Park in Olivette (pending).

• Gauges have integrated data logger to record rainfall at 5-minute intervals.
• Gauges have integrated cellular data modem that reports to the control center at 5-minute

intervals at the onset of rainfall.

8 Inch dia. Rain 
Collection Cylinder

Data Logger 
& Modem

0.01” Tipping 
Bucket & Counter

Solar Panel

Data Transmission
Antenna

Battery Powered Automated Rain Gauge mounted on streetlights 

D - 1 - 2



 

Page 3 of 7 
 

1

23

22

30

35

Early Warning
Rain Gauge

USGS Stream 
Gauge

Boundary of Upper
River des Peres
Watershed

University City
Municipal
Boundary

Base Map: MSD U City Watershed 
 
 

U City's System - Control Center 
• Control Center is a cloud-based SaaS system (Software as a Service). 
• Provided by the rain gauge manufacturer. 
• Gauges transmit data to the City’s private account at this center. 
• Individuals designated by the City can log in from any computer. 
• From there, we can configure the gauges, collect, record, and analyze data, and 

configure automated alarms to designated recipients. 
• The software provides for a public portal.  (Portal to be provided to Council) 
• Emerging trends toward SaaS and cellular data transmission are what make a system 

like this affordable. 
 
Performance 

• Data based on MSD rainfall records. 
• Flood stage equals 14 square feet; water at the top of the bank 
• U City has had seven (7) 16-foot storms in twenty (20) years; six (6) have occurred 

within the last ten (10) years. 
Our System 

Performance

• Since the study performed by Dr. Criss in 2018-19, we have had one 
minor and two major flood events.

• Applying the prediction protocol retroactively to MSD rainfall data for 
these floods yielded the following results:

* Just under threshold

Date Predicted 
Peak Stage

Actual Peak    
Stage

Time of 
Alarm

Time of 
Flood Stage

Time of 
Peak Stage

5/29/2019 14.2 ft 14.8 ft Not issued* 18:50 CDT 19:10 CDT

7/22/2019 16.3 ft 16.2 ft 05:50 CDT 06:03 CDT 06:52 CDT

8/9/2020 17.3 ft 16.4ft 01:50 CDT 02:05 CDT 02:50 CDT

 
 

Current Status   
• Get the Olivette gauge up and running. (Olivette was scheduled to have a walk-

through of the site on March 19th and examine possible gauge locations.) 
 Important.  This is in the RDP headwaters where much of our flood water 

originates. 
 The system will be ready to issue alarms within 1-2 weeks of installation. 
 Decide how to disseminate warnings to the public and define associated 

emergency protocols.  

D - 1 - 3



 

Page 4 of 7 
 

 The Commission envisions an FWS alarm going to the City’s emergency dispatch, 
which then issues a public warning. 

 Many vendors provide targeted emergency notification services to the public by 
text/email/phone.  

 These are SaaS systems, with the price determined by the population served.  The 
best known is CodeRed; used by Jefferson County.  Olivette uses SirenGPS. 

 City emergency managers need to be involved in the process at this point. 
 
Future Requirements - Next Steps 

• Direct the City’s flood plain manager to collect data on future major floods. 
 Measure elevations of high water marks in neighborhoods; (FEMA & USGS have 

training materials). 
 Gather data on damages, including building inspection & first responder reports. 
 Procure support equipment for this; (survey equipment, install staff gauges in 

flood-prone areas). 
 Post signs showing historically high water levels to raise public awareness. 

• Procure equipment to allow commission members to research stream behavior during 
floods. 
 Water level measuring equipment. Video cameras at Hafner Court, Groby Bridge, 

and Pennsylvania bridges, which may be under-sized. 
 
Related Commission Activities 

• Established a basis for measuring high-water levels of future floods. 
 The City has not collected water level data for previous floods.  This is important 

for planning. 
 Commission members used a satellite-based surveying system to establish 

elevations of reference points in flood-prone areas. 
 These will serve as calibration points for measuring high water elevations for future 

flood events. They are accurate to within one inch. 
• Developed materials for public outreach and education on stormwater and flooding 

issues to be published in ROARS and possible website. 
• Solicited photos & information from the public on past floods to fill in gaps.  
• Developing a 3-D printed model of our watershed for public display, based on satellite 

LIDAR data.  
• Attending USACE team meetings. 

 
Commissioner Thompson stated Mark Holly has arranged to display a prototype of the 3-D 
model in his garage tomorrow evening for anyone interested. 
 He stated he visited the Olivette site which is a much-undeveloped area.  So, it 
may not be that Olivette is stonewalling, just that they are unsure of what they want to do with 
the area.  However, this is not a very intrusive installation and whatever the City can do to 
help move this forward would be appreciated. 
 Mr. Thompson stated the USACE has almost concluded its review and should be 
making their recommendation on what their project will consist of for U City.  Primarily, he 
believes it will entail detention basins, levees, or floodwalls in residential and commercial 
areas.   
 
Councilmember Clay thanked the Commission for their work. 
 

D - 1 - 4



 

Page 5 of 7 
 

Mayor Crow stated he is acquainted with Olivette's Mayor and several of their Council 
members, so he would be happy to help if and when it is appropriate to do so.   
 
Mr. Rose stated Mr. Alpaslan has been working with the Director of Public Works, but at 
some point, he may need to address this issue with their City Manager. 
 
Councilmember Klein asked if Olivette needed to be in place before anything could be done 
in U City?  Mr. Stein stated if the rainfall were uniform across U City's watershed all you 
would need is one gauge.  However, the reason for three (3) gauges is to ensure that you are 
adequately accounting for the variations that occur.  So, while the two U City gauges that are 
already operational are better than nothing, to cover all bets you really need that third eye in 
Olivette.  But technically, the alarms are configured, and the City could go with what it has.   
 
Mayor Crow stated it is a real benefit to have such talented people living within this 
community and he would like to thank the Commission for the incredible work they have 
performed. 
 

4. MINORITY PARTICIPATION POLICY 
Mr. Rose stated pursuant to Council's request regarding information on the City's existing 
policy, he has asked Mr. Cole to make this next presentation. 
 

Mr. Cole highlighted the pertinent portions of each Section related to the City's requirements 
for minority participation.  
 
Section 135.010 – Personnel Requirements for Contractors with City (Ordinance No. 
5604, June 1, 1987)  
 
A.  Any person, firm, or corporation contracting with the City to provide services such as but 
not limited to, technical/professional services, street repairs, supplies, building maintenance, 
at a cost to the City of fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) or more and involving ten (10) 
or more employees in the workforce providing the contracted services, shall, as a condition 
precedent to the rendition of such services, certify by affidavit filed with the said City that at 
least twenty percent (20%) of the workforce providing the contracted services shall consist of 
workers generally classified as members of minorities and/or female workers. The City 
Council may, under special circumstances such as, for example, situations requiring technical 
expertise and/or specialization, waive the conditions set forth herein, provided, however, that 
such waiver is justified by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the City Council. 
 
Section 135.010 – Personnel Requirements for Contractors with City (Ordinance No. 
5604, June 1, 1987), continued.  
 
B. Any person, firm, or corporation contracting with the City to provide services involving 
payment of one hundred thousand dollars ($100,000.00) or more in which there are two 
(2) or more subcontractors shall agree with the City that at least fifteen percent (15%) of 
the total amount of the City's contract shall be allocated to subcontractors who employ 
workers generally classified as members of minorities and/or female workers. 
 
Section 135.020 – Personnel Requirements with Respect to Employees and Owners 
(Ordinance No. 6818, June 21, 2010) 

D - 1 - 5



 

Page 6 of 7 
 

 
A. As many as possible of the City contracts over two thousand dollars ($2,000.00) shall be 
entered into with the following: 

• Individuals generally classified as members of minorities and/or female; and 
• Firms consisting of individuals generally classified as members of minorities and/or 

female; and 
• Corporations, the stock of which is owned by the individuals generally classified as 

members of minorities and/or females. 
 
B. The City Manager shall take all reasonable steps to achieve compliance with this Section; 
which steps shall include, but are not limited by, the following: 

• Regularly and periodically place ads in the media, which are aimed at the minorities, to 
solicit those minorities to bid on City contracts and to place themselves on the City's 
bid list; 

• When publishing bid notices, the City at all times will also publish in a minority 
newspaper; and 

• Utilize all available directories of minority and female firms. 
 
C. The City Manager shall report quarterly to the City Council of the efforts in carrying out this 
Section and the results of said efforts. 
 
D. All minority and/or female firms, corporations, or individuals shall file an affidavit with the 
City, prior to commencing work, that they are a minority and/or female firm, corporation, or 
individual. 
 
Mr. Rose stated this is an area that was decentralized, and this year staff made the first steps 
towards centralizing this policy under the Finance Department.  He stated based on his 
knowledge, Ms. Fitch was the last person to hold the position of a Purchasing Coordinator, 
which is something they are in the process of trying to reinstate.  He stated the goal is to 
ensure that all departments are following these standard operating procedures and the City 
can do a better job with reporting its program results.   
 
Councilmember Clay asked Mr. Rose when he believed staff would be in a position to provide 
these results to Council?  Mr. Rose stated initially staff's priority is to put all of these 
procedures in place because prior to the centralization every department was doing its own 
thing.   
 
Mr. Cole stated the Purchasing Specialist has revised the City's Purchasing Policy to include 
these Sections of the Code to make sure every department is complying.  But he will need 
time to review the policy before it goes into affect. 
 
Councilmember Clay asked if staff had a sense of whether departments were meeting any of 
these percentages?  Mr. Rose stated although this does not mean departments have not 
been adhering to these requirements, to his knowledge, minority contract percentages have 
been tracked for at least ten (10) years.  However, going forward, his objective is to put the 
appropriate resources in place to ensure these policies, as well as the State Statutes, are 
properly executed.  The creation of a Purchasing Specialist position is the first step but if the 
City is to do a good job with oversight of these contracts, additional resources will be needed.   

D - 1 - 6



 

Page 7 of 7 
 

Mr. Rose stated unfortunately, staff is dealing with a lot of challenges, but he hopes to have 
these policies in place within the next 90 to 120 days.  Once that is completed, he will have a 
better understanding of the type of resources needed and will advise Council of his findings. 
 
Councilmember Smotherson stated these policies seem to indicate that when the cost of a 
contract increases, the amount of minority participation is decreased.  For example, any 
contract at a cost to the City of fifty thousand dollars ($50,000.00) requires at least twenty 
(20) percent, but a contract at a cost to the City of one hundred thousand dollars 
($100,000.00) only requires fifteen (15) percent.  Can someone provide him with an 
explanation of these percentages and whether this is something that can be amended by 
Council?  Mr. Cole stated his understanding is that the fifteen (15) percent requirement refers 
to subcontractors and the twenty (20) percent requirement refers to the prime contractor.  
 
Mayor Crow stated these policies have probably been off the administration's radar for some 
time.  However, now that the City is starting to engage in some sizeable construction 
projects, this might be a good opportunity to see what U City's neighboring communities are 
doing in this area to ensure that the City is on an equal playing field in its implementation and 
execution of these policies. 
 
Mr. Rose stated staff would be happy to conduct the suggested research to identify how the 
City's policies compare to its surrounding neighbors.   
 
Mayor Crow stated he appreciates the fact that this issue has been brought to Council's 
attention because during his tenure, he does not recall ever seeing a report on minority 
participation. 
 

5. ADJOURNMENT   
Mayor Crow adjourned the Study Session at 6:22 p.m. 

 
 

LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 

D - 1 - 7





Page 1 of 5 

 

A. MEETING CALLED TO ORDER
At the Regular Session of the City Council of University City held via videoconference, on
Monday, April 12, 2021, Mayor Terry Crow called the meeting to order at 6:31 p.m.

B. ROLL CALL
In addition to the Mayor, the following members of Council were present:

Councilmember Stacy Clay 
Councilmember Aleta Klein 
Councilmember Steven McMahon 
Councilmember Jeffrey Hales 
Councilmember Tim Cusick 
Councilmember Bwayne Smotherson 

Also in attendance were City Manager, Gregory Rose; City Attorney, John F. Mulligan, Jr.; 
Director of Planning and Zoning, Clifford Cross; Director of Parks, Recreation & Forestry, Darren 
Dunkle; Director of Public Works, Sinan Alpaslan; Amy Gilbertson and Amanda Truemper of 
Trivers, and Bob Schwartz of HOK. 

C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Mayor Crow noted the City Manager's request to move Item H-3; (Conditional Use Permit (PC-
21-05), Convenience Store at 8326-8328 Olive Blvd.), to the April 26th meeting.

Councilmember Smotherson moved to approve, seconded by Councilmember Clay, and the motion 
carried unanimously. 

Councilmember Clay moved to approve the Agenda as amended, seconded by Councilmember 
Hales, and the motion carried unanimously. 

D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
1. March 8, 2021, Study Session – River Des Peres & Visioning and Comprehensive Plan

Update was moved by Councilmember Klein, seconded by Councilmember Hales, and the
motion carried unanimously.

2. March 15, 2021, Special Meeting was moved by Councilmember Clay, seconded by
Councilmember Hales, and the motion carried unanimously.

3. March 22, 2021, Regular Meeting, was moved by Councilmember Cusick, seconded by
Councilmember McMahon, and the motion carried unanimously.

4. March 30, 2021, Special Meeting was moved by Councilmember McMahon, seconded by
Councilmember Klein, and the motion carried unanimously.

E. APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS & COMMISSIONS
1. John Roman is nominated to the Urban Forestry Commission as fill in replacing Julie Brill

Teixeira’s unexpired term by Councilmember Aleta Klein, seconded by Councilmember
Cusick, and the motion carried unanimously.

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
VIA VIDEOCONFERENCE 

Monday, April 12, 2021 
6:30 p.m. 

D - 2 - 1



 

Page 2 of 5 
 

F. CITIZEN PARTICIPATION  
Procedures for submitting comments for Citizen Participation and Public Hearings: 
ALL written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.  Comments may be sent 
via email to: councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.  
Such comments will be provided to City Council prior to the meeting.  Comments will be made a part of the official 
record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting.  
Please note, when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.  Also, note if your comment 
is on an agenda or non-agenda item. If a name and address are not provided, the submitted comment will not be 
recorded in the official record. 

 
Mayor Crow thanked citizens for taking the time to submit their written comments, which have been 
made a part of this record. 
 

G. CONSENT AGENDA 
1. Economic Development Strategic Plan Acceptance 
2. Heman Park – Sealing and Striping Project 
3. ABI Force Z23 Ball Field Groomer 
4. Canton Fence Project 
5. Economic Development Retail Sales Tax – Relocation Assistance 

 
Councilmember Clay moved to approve Items 1 through 5 of the Consent Agenda, seconded by 
Councilmember Klein, and the motion carried unanimously. 
 

H. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
1. Police Station Design Concept – Video Presentation 

 
Mr. Rose stated as requested by Council, Ms. Truemper and her team are here tonight to present a 
video of the proposed design concepts for the Police Station.  
 
Ms. Truemper stated although this current vision provides an idea of the potential opportunities with 
the Annex, there will be additional design changes based on feedback from departments as they 
move forward.  She stated a lot of the credit for putting this together goes to Bob and his team at 
HOK. 
 
Mr. Schwartz stated what they discovered is that there are a lot of opportunities that have yet to 
investigated and flexibility in determining where departments can be located.   
 

(Viewing of Video Presentation) 
 
Mayor Crow stated he was unable to determine where some of the workspaces and intake areas 
would be located.   
 
Mr. Schwartz stated the video concentrates on the spaces that generate a lot of natural light, rather 
than locker rooms, evidence storage, or the intake areas.  He stated the photo of the two garage 
doors make up the vehicle sally port where prisoners will be brought into the facility outside of plain 
view.  So, the entire northwest corner of the building will represent the intake area, which includes 
several holding cells. 
 
Councilmember Clay questioned what space if any has been devoted to community rooms that 
could potentially house activities like the Citizen's Police Academy or programs that entail 
community interaction with the police?  
 
Ms. Truemper stated the building between the Annex and City Hall; which they have identified as 
the connector affords them the opportunity to create shared community/conference rooms or break 
rooms.   
 
Mr. Schwartz stated there is one large and one small conference room behind the windows and two 
conference rooms located off the hallway that leads to the entrance off of the west parking lot.  

D - 2 - 2

mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


 

Page 3 of 5 
 

There is also a large briefing room on the southeast corner of the second floor equipped with video 
technology and whiteboards that would be an ideal spot for the Citizen's Police Academy. 
 
Councilmember Hales asked whether the staircase portrayed at the beginning of the video was the 
original staircase?  Ms. Truemper stated that it was.  Councilmember Hales questioned whether 
any other features of the building would remain?  Ms. Truemper stated for the most part, outside of 
the staircase, which is considered a historic core of the building, will be retained.  The elevator core 
will require a new elevator, the clear story will be reopened and covered, and new stairs will be 
added to meet the current egress requirements.   
 Councilmember Hales stated this building was a hodgepodge of renovations that resulted in a 
pretty dismal environment, so the open concept and use of glass in the interior resulting in a radiant 
space is what he was hoping to see.  
 
Mr. Schwartz stated the main spaces pictured in the lobby will have a counter for the police with a 
glass partition separating it from the lobby that can only be accessed with a security card.  Police 
enter from behind the stairs off the west parking lot which has been cut off from the public.   
 
Councilmember Hales questioned whether the exterior walls would be insulated and dry-walled or if 
the exposed brick would remain?  Mr. Schwartz stated they had not begun the design phase, so 
the video does not include the more detailed work and types of materials that will be used.  He 
stated this is merely a glimpse at some of the opportunities.   
 
Ms. Truemper stated they have the opportunity to do either a finished space or retain the exposed 
brick.   
 
Mayor Crow thanked Ms. Truemper and her team for joining Council this evening.  He stated all of 
their efforts are appreciated and they look forward to the next phase of this project.   
 

2. Allocation of Funding to Hire Assistant City Manager - Housing 
 

Mr. Rose stated staff is requesting that Council consider allocating $13,000 from the General Fund 
reserves and $12,000 from the RPA 2 Fund to hire an Assistant City Manager to assist in the 
development and administration of a housing program, as well as oversight of various construction 
projects and the courts. 
 
Councilmember Clay moved to approve, seconded by Councilmember McMahon. 
 
Councilmember Smotherson stated he does not have a clear understanding of why this position 
could not be incorporated into the Planning and Zoning Department?  Mr. Rose stated except for 
the Courts, this individual will act as a liaison to some of the City's departments rather than a direct 
report.  Mr. Cross's role involves planning and code enforcement associated with development, so, 
while this position could be incorporated into his department, his belief is there needs to be a 
greater degree of autonomy.   
 Mr. Rose stated the intent is for this individual to work with the Task Force appointed by 
Council to develop and administer a housing program for the entire City, as well as the 3rd Ward, 
which has roughly 3 million dollars allocated for improvements.  Along with those housing 
improvements the Assistant City Manager will be tasked with working with other departments to 
identify how to address other deficiencies in the 3rd Ward, as well as assisting NOVUS in the 
development of all 50 acres, and other proposed projects.  So, it will be important to have the 
infrastructure in place to accommodate all these needs.   
 As a final point, with the reintroduction of earmarks, this position will provide him with an 
opportunity to focus on building a strong relationship with the City's federal and state delegations 
that have influence over the allocation of dollars to the State, and regional organizations like 
East/West Gateway, where the City has yet another potential to derive resources.    

D - 2 - 3



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

 So, while at some point he may recommend that this position be assigned to a specific 
department, he does not think that would be a wise move during the design and implementation 
stage of a City-wide program.    
 
Councilmember Klein asked Mr. Rose if he envisioned this to be a temporary or permanent 
position?  Mr. Rose stated based on the number of projects staff has been unable to pursue 
because of staff reductions; the availability of federal resources, and improvements in the 
economy, he envisions this to be a position that will be needed indefinitely.  One example of a 
project that will be coming before Council shortly is the expansion of Cunningham Industrial Park to 
recruit more businesses and strengthen the City's economic development strategy.     
 
Voice vote on Councilmember Clay's motion to approve carried unanimously, with the exception of 
Councilmember Smotherson.    
 

3. Conditional Use Permit (PC-21-05) – Convenience Store – 8326-8328 Olive Blvd. 
(Removed) 

4. Redbird Rookies Program 
 
Mr. Rose stated a proposal for volunteers to handle the majority of the functions associated with 
the Redbird Rookies Program, with minimal direct support by City personnel was submitted to the 
Parks Commission, and he would ask Mr. Dunkle to present the details and recommended 
outcomes. 
 
Mr. Dunkle stated the City has supported the Redbird Rookies Program, which is sponsored 
through Cardinal's Care, for four years, handling the assignment of fields, scheduling, and the 
recruitment of volunteer coaches.  This year the City received a request to restart the program after 
it was placed on hold due to COVID.  However, since the City was not in a position to maintain this 
program due to staffing shortages, some volunteers drafted a proposal to handle a majority of the 
City's functions, with minimal support by staff.  That proposal was submitted to the Parks 
Commission who voted unanimously to recommend approval.    
 
Mr. Rose stated staff is recommending that Council approve the proposal for the City to resume its 
support of this program, which includes providing insurance under the City's umbrella. 
 
Councilmember Smotherson moved to approve, seconded by Councilmember McMahon. 
 
Councilmember Clay thanked the volunteers who stepped up to administer this program which he 
believes will be a great benefit for the City's youth.   
 
Voice vote on Councilmember Smotherson's motion to approve carried unanimously.   
 

I. NEW BUSINESS 
  RESOLUTIONS 

1. Resolution 2021-5 – A Resolution Condemning Racism, Discrimination, and Hate Crimes 
against Asian-Americans in Our Society. 

 
Councilmember Smotherson moved to approve, seconded by Councilmember Klein. 
 

(Mayor Crow read the Resolution into the record.) 
 
Voice vote on the motion to approve carried unanimously. 
 

BILLS 
Introduced by Councilmember Hales 

2. BILL 9430 -AN ORDINANCE CALLING A BOND ELECTION IN THE CITY OF 
UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI.  Bill Number 9430 was read for the first time. D - 2 - 4



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 
J. COUNCIL REPORTS/BUSINESS 

1. Boards and Commission appointments needed 
2. Council liaison reports on Boards and Commissions 

Councilmember Clay reported that the bulk of the Green Practices Commission meeting 
consisted of a presentation by Renew STL; an organization that has established a buying 
cooperative for reduced costs on the purchase and installation of solar panels.  He stated 
his understanding is that the City is currently in discussions with Renew STL to determine 
whether it would be feasible to install this type of solar technology in some of its buildings.   
 
Councilmember Hales stated the Civil Service Board has several members whose terms will 
expire this year.  And since, at this point, there does not appear to be enough candidates to 
fill this void, he would suggest that someone discuss this situation with the retiring members 
and encourage them to remain on the Board until sufficient replacements have been 
recruited.  
 

3. Boards, Commissions, and Task Force minutes 
4. Other Discussions/Business 

  
K. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Councilmember Smotherson thanked Council for approving Resolution 2021-5 and asked that it 
be submitted to the Asian Chamber of Commerce and U City's Chinese newspaper.   
 
Councilmember Hales stated it has been almost a year since Council conducted its first Zoom 
meeting, and while staff has done an exemplary job in organizing these meetings for Council 
and all its Boards and Commissions, he looks forward to seeing everyone in person again; 
hopefully in the very near future.     
 

L. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Motion to go into a Closed Session according to Missouri Revised Statutes 610.021 (1) Legal 
actions, causes of action or litigation involving a public governmental body and any confidential 
or privileged communications between a public governmental body or its representatives or 
attorneys. 

 
Councilmember Hales moved to adjourn the Regular Session and go into a Closed Session, 
seconded by Councilmember Smotherson.   
 
Roll Call Vote Was: 
Ayes:  Councilmember Klein, Councilmember McMahon, Councilmember Hales, Councilmember 
Cusick, Councilmember Smotherson, Councilmember Clay, and Mayor Crow. 
Nays:  None.   
 

M. ADJOURNMENT 
Mayor Crow thanked everyone for their participation and closed the Regular Session of Council 
at 7:11 p.m. to go into a Closed Session.  The Closed Session reconvened in an open session at 
7:49 p.m. 

 
 

LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 

 

D - 2 - 5



D - 2 - 6



D - 2 - 7



D - 2 - 8



D - 2 - 9



D - 2 - 10



Council Agenda Item Cover 

MEETING DATE: April 26, 2021  

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: 2019 and 2020 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) 
Re-Allocation of Funds 

AGENDA SECTION:   Public Hearing  

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?    No 

PREPARED/SUBMITTED BY: Keith Cole – Director of Finance 

The (Virtual) public hearing will be held via Zoom Webinar at the link below:  

Please click the link below to join the webinar: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84263288695?pwd=V1NuYmZTVGZjREYyWjJ5ZW5vNURaZz09 
Passcode: 694161 
Additional details may be found on the City’s website:  
https://www.ucitymo.org/879/Virtual-Meetings 

Procedure for submitting Public Hearing Comments: 
• ALL written comments must be received no later than 12:00 p.m. the day of the meeting.
• Comments may be  sent via email to: councilcomments@ucitymo.org, or mailed to the City

Hall – 6801 Delmar Blvd. – Attention City Clerk.
• Such comments will be provided to City Council prior to the meeting.  Comments will be made a

part of the official record and made accessible to the public online following the meeting.
• Please note, when submitting your comments, a name and address must be provided.

Please also note, if a name and address are not provided, the provided comment will not be
recorded in the official record.

BACKGROUND REVIEW:     
Calendar Year 2019 proposed CDBG total fund allocation was $103,400.  The Public Works 
Department recommended a street improvement project – asphalt resurfacing improvements with 
sidewalk-curb replacement on Westgate Avenue, Vernon to Olive Road.  However, the Westgate 
Avenue project will not be ready until later in 2021 to meet with other joining projects.  St. Louis 
County Office of Community Development is allowing the City to re-allocate the funds from this 
project to sidewalk and curb replacement on the 1300 block of Rushmore Dr., 8000 block of Malibu 
Ct., and 8000 block of Briar Ct. in the amount of $103,400 since this project is ready to proceed.   

Calendar Year 2020 proposed CDBG total fund allocation was $78,400 for street improvements.  
The Public Works Department recommended a sidewalk and curb replacement on the 1300 block 
of Rushmore Dr., 8000 block of Malibu Ct., and 8000 block of Briar Ct.  As stated previously, the 
Westgate Avenue project will not be ready for construction until later in 2021.  St. Louis County 
Office of Community Development is allowing the City to re-allocate funding between the two 
projects.   

H - 1 - 1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84263288695?pwd=V1NuYmZTVGZjREYyWjJ5ZW5vNURaZz09
https://www.ucitymo.org/879/Virtual-Meetings
mailto:councilcomments@ucitymo.org


ATTACHMENTS: Aerial Maps of Rushmore Ct., Malibu Ct., Briar Ct., and Westgate Ave. 
Public Notice 
Public Hearing Handout (CDBG Overview) 

2019 2020

Public Service
Police Patrol -$  25,000$        

Street Improvement
Streets, Sidewalks, and Curbs 103,400        78,400          

103,400$      103,400$      

Activity

H - 1 - 2



H - 1 - 3



 
 

H - 1 - 4



H - 1 - 5



St. Louis County Department of Planning 

Office of Community Development  
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) OVERVIEW 

WHAT IS CDBG? 

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) Community Development Block Grant 

(CDBG) program provides annual grants on a formula basis to entitled cities and counties to develop viable 

urban communities by providing decent housing and a suitable living environment, and by expanding 

economic opportunities, principally for low- to moderate-income persons. 

NATIONAL OBJECTIVES 

 All activities funded by the CDBG program must meet one of the following National Objectives: 

1. Primarily benefit low- and moderate-income residents.

2. Eliminate slums and blight.

3. Alleviate urgent, serious, and critical community needs that are of recent origin.

ELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES 

 Infrastructure & Public Facilities Improvements - Acquisition, construction, reconstruction,

rehabilitation or installation of public facilities and improvements, such as streets, sidewalks, parks,

water and sewer facilities, sanitary sewers, neighborhood centers, parking lots, fire stations, and ADA

accessibility enhancements.

 Clearance Activities - Clearance, demolition, and removal of buildings.

 Public Services - Provision of public services (including labor, supplies, and materials) including but not

limited to those concerned with employment, crime prevention, child care, health, drug abuse,

education, fair housing counseling, energy conservation, homebuyer down payment assistance, utility

payments, or recreational needs. To be eligible for CDBG assistance, a public service must be either a

new service or a quantifiable increase in the level of an existing service above that which has been

provided by or on behalf of the unit of general local government.

 Rehabilitation & Preservation Activities - CDBG funds may be used to finance the rehabilitation of:

 Privately owned buildings and improvements for residential purposes.

 Low-income public housing and other publicly owned residential buildings and improvements.

 Publicly or privately owned commercial or industrial buildings, except that the rehabilitation of

such buildings owned by a private for-profit business is limited to improvements to the exterior of

the building and the correction of code violations.

 Nonprofit-owned nonresidential buildings and improvements.

INELIGIBLE ACTIVITIES 

 Improvements to buildings used for conduct of government such as a city hall.

Exceptions: Police/fire stations, community centers, ADA improvements to government buildings.

 General government expenses such as regular trash pickup.

 Political activities such as campaigns, voter registration drives.

 Activities that support religious worship or proselytizing.

H - 1 - 6



  
 

    
 
 
       
 

Council Agenda Item Cover 
 

 
 

MEETING DATE:  April 26,2021 
 
AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Project 1481 - Sidewalk and Curb Replacement Project  

 
          AGENDA SECTION: Consent Agenda 
 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED?:      YES 
 
PREPARED/SUBMITTED BY: Sinan Alpaslan – Director of Public Works 

 
BACKGROUND:  Every two years, the City inspects all streets for deficiencies and rates 
them based on severity of deterioration/damage.  By documenting the actual conditions of 
the pavement, the City is able to develop a maintenance budget, make timely repairs and 
use cost-effective maintenance procedures. 

 
The City replaces sidewalks that are extensively cracked, failed, does not meet certain ADA 
requirements, faulted, and/or possesses a trip hazard. Curbs are replaced when severe 
enough to disrupt drainage or when deteriorated and adjacent to street pavement that is 
being resurfaced. 
 
On April 16, 2021, the City opened bids for the Sidewalk and Curb Replacement Project.  
The tabulation of bid proposals is as follows: 
 

Contractor Base Bid Price 
Pride Master, Inc. $342,635.50 
Build Pro  $345,556.50 
Raineri Construction $409,825.00 
Spencer Contracting  $513,124.00 

 
The lowest bidder Pride Master has worked on the previous sidewalk and curb project with 
a Minority Business Enterprise (MBE) Sub Contractor and workforce with satisfactory 
performance and flexibility to respond to the City’s requests.  
 
The City’s FY21 budget for sidewalk replacement is $350,000.00  

 
RECOMMENDATION:  City Manager recommends City Council’s approval of the award for 
the Sidewalk and Curb Replacement Project to Pride Master, Inc. in the amount of 
$342,635.50. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   1) Project locations list 
   2) Bids tabulation. 

I - 1 - 1



ATTACHMENT 1: 

LOCATIONS 

STREET SECTION FROM TO 
Camden Ct Dover Ct Dover Ct 
Clemens Ave Westgate Eastgate 
Eastgate Ave Vernon Cabanne 
Eastgate Ave Cabanne North 
Harrison Ave Lynn Wayne 
Harrison Ave Wayne Milan 
Kempland Pl Fullerton Deadend 
Limit Ave Delmar alley 
Limit Ave Enright Clemens 
Quendo Ave Lynn Ave Canton Ave 
Quendo Ave Milan Ave Lynn Ave 
Kingsbury Hanley Jackson 
Purdue Dartmouth Shaftesbury 
Seville Ave Braddock Tamerton 
Wayne Ave Harrison Lamb 
Appleton Ave Sheridan Coolidge 
Appleton Ave Tamerton Braddock 
Braddock Dr Seville Fullerton 
Coolidge Dr Kempland Appleton 
Coolidge Dr Richard Elmore 
Eastgate Ave Vernon Cates 
Eastgate Ave Cates Clemens 
Eastgate Ave Clemens City limit 
Varney Ave Woodson Sheridan 

I - 1 - 2



Bid Tabulation
PROJECT NO. 1481 - SIDEWALK AND CURB REPLACEMENT AT VARIOUS LOCATIONS

Bid Opening:  April 16, 2021   10:00 a.m.

Raineri Construction, LLC Build Pro Pride Master, Inc Spencer 

Item No. Items Unit Quantity Unit Price Total Cost Unit Price Total Cost Unit Price Total Cost Unit Price Total Cost Unit Price Total Cost
1 Sidewalk Removal SF 25,000 $1.75 $43,750.00 $1.70 $42,500.00 $2.21 $55,250.00 $5.10 $127,500.00
2 Curb Removal LF 2,350 $7.50 $17,625.00 $5.77 $13,559.50 $6.09 $14,311.50 $19.40 $45,590.00
3 Portland Cement Concrete Sidewalk , 4" SF 17,000 $8.75 $148,750.00 $6.36 $108,120.00 $6.49 $110,330.00 $7.68 $130,560.00
4 Portland Cement Concrete Sidewalk , 6" SF 1,000 $9.50 $9,500.00 $6.87 $6,870.00 $7.80 $7,800.00 $6.41 $6,410.00
5 Portland Cement Concrete Curb Ramp , 7" SF 8,000 $11.00 $88,000.00 $9.34 $74,720.00 $8.93 $71,440.00 $13.14 $105,120.00
6 Precast Truncated Dome Tiles - New SF 800 $20.00 $16,000.00 $16.36 $13,088.00 $13.50 $10,800.00 $18.63 $14,904.00
7 Combination Curb and Gutter, 30" LF 1,350 $32.00 $43,200.00 $31.36 $42,336.00 $28.00 $37,800.00 $25.20 $34,020.00
8 Roll Type Curb and Gutter, 30" LF 500 $30.00 $15,000.00 $28.85 $14,425.00 $25.60 $12,800.00 $25.20 $12,600.00
9 Vertical Curb and Gutter LF 850 $30.00 $25,500.00 $32.28 $27,438.00 $22.24 $18,904.00 $25.20 $21,420.00

10 U Heights 4" Specialty Concrete Sidewalk SF 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
11 Mobilization (unplanned) EA 5 $500.00 $2,500.00 $500.00 $2,500.00 $640.00 $3,200.00 $3,000.00 $15,000.00

TOTAL BID AMOUNT $409,825.00 $345,556.50 $342,635.50 $513,124.00

I - 1 - 3

salpaslan
Text Box
ATTACHMENT 2



I - 1 - 4



MEETING DATE: April 26, 2021 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: 3rd Quarter Financial Report – March 31, 2021 

AGENDA SECTION: City Manager’s Report 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? Yes 

PREPARED/SUBMITTED BY: Keith Cole – Director of Finance 

BACKGROUND REVIEW:    

The Director of Finance will present the FY2021 3rd Quarter Financial Report as of March 31, 2021 
to the Mayor and City Council.  The presentation will consist of an overview on the major funds. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

The City Manager is recommending approval of the 3rd Quarter Financial Report as of March 31, 
2021.   

ATTACHMENTS: 

1) PowerPoint Presentation – 3rd Quarter March 31, 2021 FY2021
2) 3rd Quarter Financial Report – Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

  Council Agenda Item Cover 

J - 1 - 1



J - 1 - 2



J - 1 - 3



J - 1 - 4



J - 1 - 5



J - 1 - 6



J - 1 - 7



J - 1 - 8



J - 1 - 9



J - 1 - 10



J - 1 - 11



J - 1 - 12



2021 Actual As 2020 2020
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 3rd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

General Fund Revenues:

Property Taxes 3,574,700         3,585,700         3,257,357         90.8% 3,353,849         95.2%
Sales and Use Taxes 5,983,000         5,983,000         3,812,563         63.7% 3,922,454         57.1%
Gross Receipts Taxes 6,113,000         6,113,000         3,936,065         64.4% 3,921,451         63.1%
Intergovernmental 1,882,000         1,882,000         1,545,889         82.1%  1,556,429         71.5%
Grants 1,276,300         1,276,300         493,924            38.7% 637,251            49.9%
Licenses 586,000            586,000            332,070            56.7% 242,999            35.8%
Inspection Fees and Permits 927,300            927,300            492,410            53.1% 506,384            58.5%
Charges for Municipal Services 1,135,000         1,135,000         788,896            69.5% 420,816            43.8%
Parks and Recreation Fees 490,000            490,000            (1,204)               -0.2% 443,551            59.9%
Municipal Court and Parking 766,600            443,300            316,624            71.4% 868,040            97.2%
Interest Revenue 135,000            135,000            68,511              50.7% 78,903              109.1%
Other Revenues 203,100            2,347,650         2,245,153         95.6% 205,248            50.3%

Total Revenues 23,072,000       24,904,250       17,288,257       69.4% 16,157,375 65.5%

General Fund Expenditures:

Legislative Services 221,304            224,123            119,079            119,079            53.1% 138,948            62.7%
City Manager's Office 453,397            539,497            490,949            490,949            91.0% 573,057            84.9%
Communications 192,105            192,105            138,116            138,116            71.9% 154,271            59.6%
Human Resources 227,137            246,459            152,993            152,993            62.1% 201,166            64.0%
Finance Department 623,217            731,309            561,291            561,291            76.8% 495,550            71.0%
Information Systems 620,862            623,784            325,500            342,257            52.2% 360,174            57.7%
Municipal Court 363,479            374,876            246,569            246,569            65.8% 234,951            67.4%
Police Department 9,310,177         9,373,162         6,271,110         6,271,110         66.9%  6,161,232         68.2%
Fire Department 5,195,067         5,209,067         3,867,978         3,910,966         74.3%  3,796,652         71.5%
Public Works - Admin. 275,255            275,255            228,743            228,743            83.1% 264,588            60.5%
Street Maintenance 1,359,579         1,359,579         834,140            847,322            61.4% 1,031,266         75.5%
Facilities Maintenance 809,369            799,369            569,158            569,449            71.2% 634,138            76.8%
Public Works - Capital Imp 300,000            300,000            10,615              10,615              3.5% -                    0.0%
Planning & Development 1,305,965         1,509,122         993,016            993,016            65.8%  1,048,880         67.3%
Parks & Recreation - Parks Maint 1,759,811         1,754,815         1,144,615         1,410,215         65.2% 998,010            68.0%
Community Center 192,962            192,962            50,468              50,468              26.2% 115,350            67.8%
Aquatics 274,158            275,219            57,432              311,042            20.9% 216,175            56.1%
Centennial Commons 680,815            681,876            232,471            235,659            34.1% 502,393            60.4%
Parks & Recreation - Capital Imp 163,280            163,280            93,150              136,335            57.0% -                    0.0%
Debt Service -                    -                    -                    -                    0.0% 109,950            99.8%

Total Expenditures 24,327,939       24,825,859       16,387,393       17,026,193       66.0% 17,036,751       69.2%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) (1,255,939)        78,391              900,863            (879,376)           

Insurance Recoveries 67,000              67,000              67,350              69,905              
Transfer In from Other Funds 1,843,655         1,843,655         1,843,655         734,830            
Transfer Out to Other Funds (1,136,331)        (1,136,331)        (1,136,331)        (1,011,900)        
Total Other Financing Sources 774,324            774,324            774,674            (207,165)           

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
   Expenditures (481,615)           852,715            1,675,538         (1,086,541)        

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of March 31, 2021
FY 2021

J - 1 - 13



2021 Actual As 2020 2020
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 3rd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Capital Improvement Sales Tax:

Sales and Use Taxes 2,047,000         2,047,000         1,376,126         67.2%  1,395,179         57.7%
Interest Revenue 3,000                3,000                1,433                47.8% 2,778                0.0%

Total Revenues 2,050,000         2,050,000         1,377,559         67.2% 1,397,958         57.8%

Capital Improvement Sales Tax:

Personnel Services 263,204            263,204            193,881            193,881            73.7% 177,469            58.3%
Contractual Services 2,072                2,072                560                   560                   27.0% 829                   0.0%
Materials and Supplies 156                   156                   -                    -                    0.0% -                    0.0%
Capital Outlay 1,370,035         1,370,035         112,254            382,344            8.2% 541,207            26.1%
Debt Service -                    -                    -                    -                    0.0% 726,524            100.2%

Total Expenditures 1,635,467         1,635,467         306,695            576,785            18.8% 1,446,029         46.5%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) 414,533            414,533            1,070,864         (48,071)             

Transfer Out to General Fund (300,000)           (300,000)           (300,000)           -                    

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 114,533            114,533            770,864            (48,071)             

FY 2021

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
City of University City

As of March 31, 2021

J - 1 - 14



2021 Actual As 2020 2020
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 3rd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Park and Stormwater Sales Tax:

Sales and Use Taxes 843,000            843,000            602,280            71.4%  798,735            57.2%
Interest Revenue 2,000                2,000                775                   38.8% 1,585                0.0%

Total Revenues 845,000            845,000            603,056            71.4% 800,320            57.3%

Park and Stormwater Sales Tax:

Personnel Services 238,229            238,229            164,954            164,954            69.2% 159,066            54.5%
Contractual Services 524                   524                   239                   239                   45.5% 302                   2.9%
Capital outlay 433,509            433,509            50,232              100,102            11.6% 342,898            74.7%
Debt Service -                    -                    -                    -                    0.0% 393,136            100.7%

Total Expenditures 672,262            672,262            215,425            265,295            32.0% 895,402            77.7%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) 172,738            172,738            387,631            (95,082)             

Transfer Out to General Fund (41,280)             (41,280)             (41,280)             (20,640)             

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 131,458            131,458            346,351            (115,722)           

FY 2021
As of March 31, 2021

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

J - 1 - 15



2021 Actual As 2020 2020
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 3rd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Public Safety Sales Tax:

Sales and Use Taxes 1,446,000         1,446,000         1,106,786         76.5%  1,170,240         68.8%
Other Financing Sources -                    11,200              35,803              319.7% -                    0.0%
Non- Operating Income -                    300,000            300,000            100.0% -                    0.0%
Interest Revenue 2,500                2,500                1,142                45.7% 1,905                0.0%

Total Revenues 1,448,500         1,759,700         1,443,732         82.0% 1,172,145         68.9%

Public Safety Sales Tax:

Personnel Services -                    26,238              30,354              30,354              115.7% 47,241              69.4%
Materials and Supplies -                    -                    (1,020)               (1,020)               0.0% 17,072              0.0%
Capital Outlay 695,715            894,215            298,461            1,141,979         33.4% 432,393            70.2%
Other -                    -                    -                    -                    0.0% 50,039              0.0%
Debt Service 115,000            115,000            114,411            114,411            99.5% 114,411            99.5%

Total Expenditures 810,715            1,035,453         442,207            1,285,725         42.7% 661,157            82.7%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) 637,785            724,247            1,001,525         510,988            

Transfer Out to Various Funds (1,842,795)        (1,842,795)        (1,842,795)        (839,850)           
Total Other Financing Sources (1,842,795)        (1,842,795)        (1,842,795)        (839,850)           

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (1,205,010)        (1,118,548)        (841,270)           (328,862)           

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
As of March 31, 2021

FY 2021

City of University City

J - 1 - 16



2021 Actual As 2020 2020
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 3rd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Fleet Operations:

Service to Other Jurisdictions 1,100                1,100                341                   31.0% 587                   0.0%

Total Revenue 1,100                1,100                341                   31.0% 587                   0.0%

Fleet Operations:

Expenditures 1,229,331         1,244,610         959,404            962,405            77.1% 831,021            82.1%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) (1,228,231)        (1,243,510)        (959,062)           (830,434)           

Transfer In from Other Funds 1,206,331         1,206,331         1,206,331         1,011,900         

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (21,900)             (37,179)             247,269            181,466            

As of March 31, 2021
FY 2021

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

J - 1 - 17



2021 Actual As 2020 2020
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 3rd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Sewer Lateral Fund:

Service Charges 575,000            575,000            533,734            92.8%  533,645            92.8%
Interest Revenue -                    -                    -                    0.0% -                    0.0%

Total Revenues 575,000            575,000            533,734            92.8% 533,645            92.7%

Sewer Lateral Fund:

Personal Services 57,912              57,912              15,740              15,740              27.2% 12,648              25.3%
Contractual Services 5,675                7,124                6,675                6,675                93.7% 4,090                75.1%
Sewer Lateral Reimbursement 425,000            425,000            307,334            369,834            72.3% 216,599            47.1%

Total Expenditures 488,587            490,036            329,749            392,249            67.3% 233,337            45.3%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) 86,413              84,964              203,985            300,308            

Transfer Out to General Fund (57,240)             (57,240)             (57,240)             (31,196)             

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 29,173              27,724              146,745            269,112            

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of March 31, 2021
FY 2021

J - 1 - 18



2021 Actual As 2020 2020
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 3rd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Solid Waste Fund:

Service Charges 3,073,500         3,073,500         2,688,272         87.5% 2,764,060         89.1%
Miscellaneous Revenues 19,700              19,700              13,000              66.0%  17,267              50.4%
Interest Revenue 1,000                1,000                -                    0.0% (5,961)               -557.1%
Grants -                    -                    -                    0.0% 18,144              0.0%

Total Revenues 3,094,200         3,094,200         2,701,272         87.3% 2,793,510         89.0%

Solid Waste Fund:

Administration 269,899            290,235            220,475            220,475            76.0% 197,662            57.0%
Operations 2,582,437         2,583,766         1,829,325         1,829,325         70.8% 1,716,338         72.2%
Leaf Collection 299,178            331,178            290,036            290,036            87.6% 308,006            92.1%
Capital Improvement 115,000            125,000            1,119                7,995                0.9% 492                   2.5%
Grants 20,000              20,000              5,364                33,764              26.8% 10,667              0.0%

Total Expenditures 3,286,514         3,350,179         2,346,319         2,381,595         70.0% 2,233,165         72.5%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) (192,314)           (255,979)           354,953            560,345            

Transfer Out to General Fund (70,000)             (70,000)             (70,000)             -                    

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (262,314)           (325,979)           284,953            560,345            

City of University City

FY 2021
As of March 31, 2021

Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

J - 1 - 19



2021 Actual As 2020 2020
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 3rd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Economic Development Retail Sales Tax

Sales and Use Taxes 456,100            456,100            301,139            66.0%  399,367            59.8%
Miscellaneous Revenues -                    -                    700                   0.0% -                    0.0%
Interest Revenue 900                   900                   388                   43.1% 793                   0.0%

Total Revenues 457,000            457,000            302,227            66.1% 400,160            60.0%

Economic Development Retail Sales Tax

Personnel Services 90,965              90,965              45,101              45,101              49.6% 78,643              66.4%
Contractual Services -                    1,126,736         210,162            210,162            18.7% 168,380            52.6%
Capital Outlay -                    148,712            65,145              119,154            43.8% 1,288                0.4%

Total Expenditures 90,965              1,366,413         320,408            374,417            23.4% 248,310            32.5%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) 366,035            (909,413)           (18,181)             151,850            

Transfer In from General Fund -                    -                    -                    -                    

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 366,035            (909,413)           (18,181)             151,850            

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of March 31, 2021
FY 2021

J - 1 - 20



2021 Actual As 2020 2020
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 3rd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Grants:

Grant Revenue 767,000            767,000            14,832              1.9%  615,698            73.8%

Total Revenues 767,000            767,000            14,832              1.9% 615,698            73.8%

Grants:

Contractual Services -                    -                    -                    -                    0.0% (10,360)             0.0%
Capital outlay 767,000            767,000            16,587              17,187              2.2% 1,437,838         172.4%

Total Expenditures 767,000            767,000            16,587              17,187              2.2% 1,427,478         171.2%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) -                    -                    (1,755)               (811,780)           

Transfer Out to General Fund -                    -                    -                    -                    

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures -                    -                    (1,755)               (811,780)           

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of March 31, 2021
FY 2021

J - 1 - 21



2021 Actual As 2020 2020
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 3rd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Parking Garage:

Parking Revenue 203,624            203,624            72,583              35.6%  153,179            74.6%
Miscellaneous 50,000              50,000              -                    0.0% 12,387              14.1%

Total Revenues 253,624            253,624            72,583              28.6% 165,566            56.5%

Parking Garage:

Personnel Services 1,290                1,290                -                    -                    0.0% 17,786              50.1%
Contractual Services 118,194            118,194            58,904              58,904              49.8% 80,831              64.6%
Material and Supplies 800                   800                   -                    -                    0.0% 617                   176.2%
Capital outlay 5,627                16,205              -                    -                    0.0% 28,426              142.1%

Total Expenditures 125,911            136,489            58,904              58,904              43.2% 127,660            70.5%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) 127,713            117,135            13,679              37,906              

Transfer Out to General Fund (53,220)             (53,220)             (53,220)             (30,668)             

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 74,493              63,915              (39,541)             7,238                

FY 2021

City of University City

As of March 31, 2021
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

J - 1 - 22



2021 Actual As 2020 2020
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 3rd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Golf Course:

Golf Course Revenue 725,000            725,000            726,333            100.2% 561,626            70.6%
Miscellaneous -                    -                    500                   0.0%  -                    0.0%

Total Revenues 725,000            725,000            726,833            100.3% 561,626            0.0%

Golf Course:

Personnel Services 363,059            363,059            259,592            298,692            71.5% 221,770            46.4%
Contractual Services 192,781            210,781            132,888            171,988            63.0% 115,029            72.7%
Material and Supplies 150,600            150,600            95,116              95,116              63.2% 60,854              46.0%
Other -                    -                    -                    -                    0.0% 4,058                0.0%
Capital outlay 100,000            100,000            7,978                53,062              8.0% 16,740              55.8%

Total Expenditures 806,440            824,440            495,574            618,857            60.1% 418,451            52.4%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) (81,440)             (99,440)             231,259            143,174            

Transfer out to General Fund (53,220)             (53,220)             (53,220)             (26,610)             

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (134,660)           (152,660)           178,039            116,564            

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of March 31, 2021
FY 2021

J - 1 - 23



2021 Actual As 2020 2020
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 3rd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Police and Fire Pension:

Property Taxes 994,000            994,000            833,149            83.8%  856,781            84.7%
Miscellaneous 400,000            400,000            4,884,189         1221.0% (3,044,121)       -253.7%
Interest Revenue 400,000            400,000            299,384            74.8% 367,785            65.2%

Total Revenues 1,794,000         1,794,000         6,016,723         335.4% (1,819,554)       -65.6%

Police and Fire Pension:

Pension Administration 169,500            169,500            105,733            105,733        62.4% 119,156            72.4%
Pension Benefits 2,661,000         2,661,000         1,907,050         1,907,050     71.7% 2,189,662         76.6%

Total Expenditures 2,830,500         2,830,500         2,012,783         2,012,783     71.1% 2,308,818         76.3%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) (1,036,500)       (1,036,500)       4,003,939         (4,128,373)       

Transfer In from Public Safety 504,100            504,100            504,100            207,500            

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures (532,400)          (532,400)          4,508,039         (3,920,873)       

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of March 31, 2021
FY 2021

J - 1 - 24



2021 Actual As 2020 2020
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 3rd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Non-Uniformed Pension:

Miscellaneous 1,544,000         1,544,000         5,931,740         384.2% (2,670,029)       -132.8%
Interest Revenue 400,000            400,000            328,852            82.2% 373,142            93.3%

Total Revenues 1,944,000         1,944,000         6,260,592         322.0% -2,296,887 -95.3%

Non-Uniformed Pension:

Pension Administration 217,978            217,978            170,197            170,197        78.1% 114,719            47.2%
Pension Benefits 1,523,000         1,523,000         1,107,622         1,107,622     72.7% 1,105,874         76.6%

Total Expenditures 1,740,978         1,740,978         1,277,819         1,277,819     73.4% 1,220,593 72.4%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) 203,022            203,022            4,982,773         (3,517,479)

Transfer in from General Fund -                   -                   -                   -                   

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures 203,022            203,022            4,982,773         (3,517,479)

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of March 31, 2021
FY 2021

J - 1 - 25



2021 Actual As 2020 2020
Annual Adjusted YTD YTD With % of Adjusted 3rd Qtr Actual As
Budget Budget Actual Encumb Budget Actual % of Budget

Library:

Property Taxes 2,820,973         2,820,973         2,388,240         84.7%  2,336,765         82.8%
Intergovernmental 500                   22,983              11,242              48.9% 13,396              70.9%
Grants 66,384              66,384              78,928              118.9% 24,306              24.3%
Miscellaneous 50,000              23,000              15,769              68.6% 60,666              60.7%
Interest Revenue 7,000                7,000                125                   1.8% 3,906                55.8%

Total Revenues 2,944,857         2,940,340         2,494,303         84.8% 2,439,040         80.1%

Library:

Personal Services 1,478,884         1,505,369         1,009,287         1,009,287     67.0% 894,897            57.2%
Contractual Services 377,635            377,635            195,412            195,412        51.7% 305,246            108.6%
Material and Supplies 398,685            398,685            200,726            200,726        50.3% 182,776            53.5%
Capital Outlay 604,961            604,961            57,829              57,829          9.6% -                    0.0%
Miscellaneous 18,308              18,308              -                    -                0.0% -                    0.0%
Grants Expenditures 66,384              66,384              112,907            112,907        170.1% 59,832              92.5%

Total Expenditures 2,944,857         2,971,342         1,576,161         1,576,161     53.0% 1,442,751         47.5%

Total Operating Surplus (Deficit) -                   (31,002)            918,142            996,289            

Transfer In from General Fund -                   -                   -                   -                   

Operating Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures -                   (31,002)            918,142            996,289            

City of University City
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures

As of March 31, 2021
FY 2021

J - 1 - 26



______________________________________________________________________   

MEETING DATE:   April 26, 2021      

AGENDA ITEM TITLE:   Facility Use Agreement (Farmers Market) 

AGENDA SECTION:   City Managers Report 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? :   Yes 

PREPARED/SUBMITTED BY: Clifford Cross, Director of Planning & Development 

BACKGROUND REVIEW:    

At the upcoming City Council meeting, staff will be requesting City Council approval of a “Facility 
Use Agreement” with the Midwest Association of Farmers Markets (MAFM). This has been an 
annual agreement that authorizes the utilization of parking lot 4 and City assistance to 
accommodate the event. The proposed agreement is similar to previously approved agreements 
except that the market organizers are planning on having a mid-week market in addition to the 
traditional Saturday market. Specifically, in addition to the Saturday 9:00 am to 1:00 pm event, they 
are proposing to have a Wednesday 2:00 pm to 7:00 pm market as well. 

Staff has attached the proposed agreement for City Council review and approval. The agreement 
identifies the proposed changes in red for review. If acceptable, staff is seeking City Council 
approval authorizing the City Manager to enter into the presented “Facility Use Agreement” with 
the Midwest Association of Farmers Markets for the 2021 season. 

RECOMMENDATION:   
The City Manager recommends approval of the agreement. 

  Council Agenda Item Cover  

J - 2 - 1



 

1 
 

  FACILITY USE AGREEMENT 
 
This Facility Use Agreement (the "Agreement"), is made and entered into this         _____of ___________, 2021 
by the Midwest Association of Farmers Markets  (MAFM) and the City of University City, Missouri, a municipal 
corporation of the State of Missouri (the “City”). 
 

WHEREAS,  the  City  would  like  to  support  a  farmer’s  market  for  the  purposes  of  promoting  local 
commerce, making the freshest produce available to its residents, and providing a dynamic gathering place for 
local farmers and residents of the City and adjoining areas; 

 
WHEREAS, the MAFM recently began operating the U City Farmers Market in the Loop (the Market) on 

Saturdays at the rear portion of the commercial building (Market in the Loop) at 6655 Delmar Boulevard; 
 

WHEREAS, the MAFM and the City desire to enter into this Agreement to allow the MAFM to expand the 
current operation onto certain areas of the Municipal Parking Lot #4 in the City of University City;  
 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, the adequacy 
of which is hereby acknowledged by both parties, MAFM and the City agree as follows: 
 
ARTICLE 1. Purpose 
   
  Section 1.1   The Market will be operated by Deborah Henderson, President and Executive Director of 
the MAFM. The purpose of this Agreement  is to set forth the terms and use for certain areas of the Municipal 
Parking Lot #4. 
 
  Section 1.2   The  Market  shall  be  used  to  (i)  promote  foods  from  locally  grown  producers  and 
regionally branded products that appeal to dedicated Market‐goers, (ii) support local farmers, (iii) support local 
musicians and events, (iv) educate the public about healthy food choices and preparation of local seasonal food, 
(v)  provide  a  dynamic meeting  place  for  City  residents  and  others  to  enjoy,  (vi)  encourage Market‐goers  to 
patronize local Loop businesses.  
 
  Section 1.3   The overall guiding principle embodied in this Agreement is the mutual desire of the City 
and the MAFM to maximize the resources of each entity to provide the highest quality Market possible for the 
constituents of the City and as a shopping destination for the region. 
 
ARTICLE 2. Governance 
 
  Section 2.1  Day‐to‐day  Market  operations  shall  be  governed  by  certain  rules  and  regulations 
(Farmer’s Market Rules) set forth in Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein, and shall be under the 
direction of Deborah Henderson (Market Manager).  

 
Section 2.2   The MAFM represents and acknowledge that the Market shall adhere to all applicable 

local  and  State  statutes  and  regulations,  City  and  St.  Louis  County  ordinances,  and  St.  Louis  County  Health 
Department Guidelines.  
 
ARTICLE 3. Location and Time 
   

Section 3.1  On Saturdays, the Market will occupy 16 designated parking spaces and a portion of the 
right‐of‐way in the City‐owned Municipal Parking Lot #4, located immediately north of the existing Market in the 
Loop, attached hereto and incorporated herein.  
 

J - 2 - 2



 

2 
 

Section 3.2   The  MAFM  agrees  to  manage  vendor  parking  and  assure  vendors  park  only  in 
designated  vendor  parking  area  as  set  forth  in  Exhibit  B  or  as  set  forth  in  Exhibit  C,  attached  hereto  and 
incorporated herein. City is not responsible if other cars are parked there prior to the arrival of vendors.  

 
Section 3.3  The MAFM will operate on the City‐owned Municipal Parking Lot #4 on Wednesdays and 

Saturdays only.  On Saturdays the MAFM agrees to not set‐up for the Market before 6:00am. The MAFM agrees 
to open the Market promptly by 9:00am and close the Market promptly no later than 1:00pm on the Municipal 
Lot. The Market may stay open  later on  the “Market  in  the Loop” property only. On Wednesdays  the MAFM 
agrees  to  operate  the market  in  the  same  area  as  on  Saturdays  between  2:00pm  and  7:00pm.  Parking  for 
customers and vendors will be in Parking Lot #4 as designated above.  

 
Section 3.4   The MAFM agrees that it will at all‐times keep Municipal Parking Lot #4 and the Market 

facilities in a neat and sanitary condition. 
 
Section 3.5  The MAFM agrees to return Municipal Parking Lot #4, including the area for the farmers 

market  and  vendor  parking,  to  normal  conditions  no  later  than  2:00pm  on  Saturdays  and  8:00pm  on 
Wednesdays,  including, but not  limited to, removal of all tents and  tables, coolers, barriers, trash and recycle 
cans, litter, etc. 
 
ARTICLE 4. Use Agreement 
 
  Section 4.1   The  MAFM  shall  pay  for  all  expenses  related  to  the  Market  including  marketing, 
promotions, advertising, etc. 
 

Section 4.2  The City agrees to provide the MAFM 2‐10ft Wooden Barriers, 2‐5 ft Plastic Barriers with 
“Road  Closed”  Signs,  4 Orange  Plastic  Traffic  Cones,  2 Orange  Plastic  Traffic  Cones with  “Handicap  Parking” 
Signs. The safety barriers are to be placed on both the east and west sides of the market in the space between 
the Market in the Loop and the 16 designated spaces in Municipal Parking Lot #4.  

 
The MAFM agrees to store barricades indoors when not in use. and install the two signs and barricades 

each Saturday by 7:30am. The signs and barriers may be installed on Fridays by noon on the boundaries of the 
16‐parking  space  section  to prevent vehicles  from being parked overnight. City  staff will  review and consider 
approval of the barricade and sign location prior to the start of the first market.  
 
  Section 4.3  The MAFM  shall pay  for  all  fees  and  services  related  to providing  portable  restroom 
facilities on‐site. A portable  facility must be  located on an accessible  route and  in a  serviceable  location and 
screened by a fence. The portable facility must be serviced after each event, and shall be properly maintained in 
accordance with all City regulations.  The portable facility must be properly secured and/or locked when not in 
use by patrons and vendors of the MAFM. 
 
  Section 4.4   The MAFM shall be responsible for the payment and provision of all utilities to vendors.  
 

Section 4.5  The  City  shall  provide  the MAFM with  in‐kind  donations  including  the  use  of  certain 
designated areas of the Municipal Parking Lot #4 for the Market (Exhibit B) and for vendor parking (Exhibit C) for 
the Market season. 

 
Section 4.6  The City commits to provide occasional visits by University City Police. 
 

  Section 4.7   The MAFM may put  recyclable materials generated at  the market  into  the  large blue 
recycling container which is located on the owner’s property and serviced by the City.  
 

J - 2 - 3



 

3 
 

Section 4.8   The  MAFM  agrees  to  allow  the  City  to  occupy  space/booth  at  the  Market  for 
educational  or promotional  events,  as needed.  The City will  be  required  to  give Market Manager  a  48‐hour 
notice when the City intends to participate in the Market. 

 
  Section 4.9   The MAFM  shall  be  responsible  for  ensuring  all  patrons,  employees,  and  businesses 
using the Municipal Parking Lot #4 have full access to parking areas other than areas shown in Exhibits B and C.  
 
  Section 4.10   The MAMF is responsible for ensuring that no vendor uses an open flame in the Market. 
Any heat source provided within the Market shall be code‐compliant and approved by the City.  
 

Section 4.11   The MAFM is responsible for ensuring that no vendor sells or distributes alcohol at any 
time during the Market, with the following exceptions.   1. A regional winery, which  is considered to be a farm 
that sells an agricultural product by their State Agriculture Department, is allowed to sample their wines and to 
sell by the bottle upon procurement of a City Liquor License. 2. Per Section 600.090.5 of the City Code, MAFM 
may apply for a Picnic Liquor License and may obtain up to 20 licenses per year providing the requests coincide 
with a special event of the market as approved by the City Manager. 
 

Section 4.12  The MAFM will be allowed to place (2) “Market Today” sidewalk signs at the corners of 
Delmar and Kingsland Ave. and at the corner of Delmar and Leland Ave. These signs are used to direct patrons to 
the Public Parking Lot #4. One (1) “Market Today” sidewalk sign may be placed at the intersection of Delmar and 
Big Bend.  

 
All  “entrance”  and  “sidewalk”  signs will only be  set out on market day  and must be  removed when 

market is over. Signs may not block accessible paths or restrict the line‐of‐sight for vehicular traffic.  
 

Section 4.13   The MAFM  is  responsible  for  ensuring  that  all musicians  and  entertainers  associated 
with  the operation are  in compliance with all applicable City codes regarding noise or the unnecessary calling 
with  the voice  for  the purpose of attracting attention by  the creation of noise or  for advertising purposes.   A 
one‐time permit (fee waived) for the full Market season shall be obtained from the City Manager for the weekly 
“Market Music Series.”   The Market Manager shall provide  the City Manager with a music schedule, hours of 
use, location of music set‐up; and will notify the City Manager of any changes.  

 
Section 4.14  At  the  end  of  the market  season,  the MAFM  shall  secure  all  City  provided materials 

(barricades, trash receptacles, etc.)  in the  locked market sheds for the winter season. Upon termination of the 
agreement the MAFM is responsible for returning City provided materials and equipment.  

 
Section 4.15   MAFM  shall be  responsible  for  repair or  replacement of  any City provided materials 

damaged by MAFM, its agents, servants or employees, vendors or patrons.   
 
Section 4.16  The MAFM  shall  not  permit  or  knowingly  condone  any  illegal  activities  to  occur  on 

Municipal Parking Lot #4 or the Market facilities during the Market’s activities.  
 
Section 4.17    The MAFM  shall  procure  a  business  license  from  the  City  for  the  operation  of  the 

Market; such license fee shall be $45.00. 
 

ARTICLE 5. Term 
 
  Section 5.1  The Market  shall  operate  beginning  after April  1,  2021  and  continuing  no  later  than 
November 30, 2020. This Agreement is null and void on November 30, 2021.  
   

J - 2 - 4



 

4 
 

  Section 5.2  The MAFM may  hold  additional  special  event  farmers markets,  such  as  “Spring”  and 
“Holiday” markets, on dates outside of the time frame specified in Section 5.1.  The MAFM shall notify the City 
at least twenty‐one days in advance of any additional markets. 
 
  Section 5.3  The City has the authority to revise this Agreement at any time, as needed, with a 20‐
day notice to the MAFM. 
 
ARTICLE 6. Termination 
 
  Section 6.1  This Agreement may  be  terminated  by  either  party  for  failure  to  perform  or  for  the 
breach of  the terms of this Agreement. The responding party shall have three  (3) days  to reply  if an effort to 
rectify or correct the failure or breach is desired.  If an agreement to rectify is not reached within seven (7) days, 
the original date of termination shall stand.  
 
  Section 6.2  This  Agreement may  be  terminated without  cause  by  either  party  by  giving written 
notice to the other thirty (30) days prior to the date of termination.   
 
ARTICLE 7. Services 
 
  Section 7.1  The City shall promote the Market through its website and ROARS newsletter. The City 
shall periodically put up 3 Farmers Market banners and will rotate them around the City throughout the market 
season. 
  

Section 7.2  The City’s Director of Community Development shall serve as the primary staff liaison to 
the MAFM  for  handling  questions  or  issues  that may  arise  in  regard  to  the  execution  of  this  Facility  Use 
Agreement. 
 
Communications may be directed to and received from the directors or project managers of Public Works and 
Zoning and Planning, and the Police Department, when time‐based issues arise having to do with road or parking 
lot construction,  road closures,  facility changes  requiring permits, annual  license  renewals, and City or school 
district events. 

  
 
Section 7.3  The City and MAFM will allow the use of their  logos for advertising by the other party.  

The  City  shall  review  and  approve  all  proposed  uses  of  the  City’s  logo  by  MAFM  prior  to  its  use  and 
dissemination.   
 
ARTICLE 8. Notice   All notices required or permitted under this Agreement shall be deemed served when 
received  by  personal  delivery,  by  nationally  recognized  overnight  carrier  or  certified  mail,  return  receipt 
requested, postage prepaid at the following addresses: 
 
The City:              MAFM: 
The City of University City          Midwest Association of Farmers Markets 
6801 Delmar Blvd.            P.O. Box 440340 
St. Louis, MO 63130            St. Louis, MO 63144 
(314) 862‐6767              (314) 913‐6632 
Attn: Gregory Rose            Attn: Deborah Henderson 
 

 
 
 

J - 2 - 5



 

5 
 

ARTICLE 9.  Liability of the City 
  Section 9.1  The City  shall not be  liable  for any damage,  loss or  injury  to  the person, property or 
effects of the Market or of any agent, servant or employee of MAFM, vendor or patron of the Market on, in or 
about the Municipal Parking Lot #4 during the Market activities other than through the negligence attributable 
to the City. 
 
  Section 9.2  MAFM agrees to carry general liability insurance covering the premises herein described 
in Exhibits B and C, which insurance shall name the City as co‐insured.  Such policy shall be presented to the City 
upon request.  Such policy of insurance must include coverage for all activities performed at the Market.    
   
  Section 9.3  MAFM shall require an agreement  that vendors  indemnify MAFM and the City  for the 
negligence or intentional acts of the vendors and their agents.    
 
ARTICLE 10.    Indemnification     As a condition of this Agreement, the MAFM agrees to  indemnify, defend and 
hold harmless the City of University City and all of its officers and employees against any and all suits, causes of 
action or claims for injuries, damages, costs and expenses to persons or property, whether public or private, that 
may arise out of, or be constituting a part of the Midwest Farmers Market, or any activity constituting a part of 
the  Market,  or  any  act,  omission  or  misconduct  of  the  MAFM  or  agents,  representatives,  contractors  or 
employees. The MAFM  agrees  to discharge  any  and  all  judgments  that may be  rendered  against  the City of 
University City or  its officers  and  employees  in  connection with  any  suit,  cause of  action, or  claim  after  the 
judgment becomes final and un‐appealable. 
 
ARTICLE 11. Assignment      Neither  party  shall  assign,  transfer,  pledge,  encumber  or  sublease  this 
Agreement; any attempt to do so shall be null and void. 
 
ARTICLE 12. Relationship of Parties   No agency, partnership,  joint  venture, employment agreement or any 
other relationship is created by this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE 13. Counterparts   This  Agreement  may  be  executed  in  counterparts,  each  of  which  shall  be 
deemed an original, but all of which, when taken together, shall constitute one and the same instrument.  
 
ARTICLE 14. Integration   This Agreement  represents  the entire  integrated agreement between  the City 
and MAFM, and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral.   This 
Agreement may be amended only by written instrument signed by both the City and MAFM. 
   
ARTICLE 15. Authorization   The  City  of University  City  and  The Midwest  Association  of  Farmers Markets 
agree to the above terms and conditions and enter into an agreement for the 2021 Farmers Market.  
 
 
 
Midwest Association of Farmers Markets 

DEBORAH HENDERSON, 

By:             

Date: _______________________________ 

Title:  President and Executive Director 

 

 

 

 

 

CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY 

GREGORY ROSE, 

By: _________________________________ 

Date: _______________________________ 

Title: City Manager, City of University City 

 
 
 

J - 2 - 6



MEETING DATE: April 26, 2021 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: Conditional Use Permit –  PC 21-05 – Approval of a Conditional Use 
Permit to establish and operate a proposed “Convenience Store” at 
the property commonly known as 8326-8328 Olive Boulevard. 

AGENDA SECTION:  City Manager’s Report  

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? Yes 

PREPARED/SUBMITTED BY:  Clifford Cross, Director of Planning and Development 

BACKGROUND REVIEW: Attached are the relevant documents for the above-referenced C.U.P. 
application.  The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit to establish and operate a 
“Convenience Store”. The proposed use requires a Conditional Use permit, within the General 
Commercial (GC) zoning district, as identified within the provisions set forth in section 400.510, 
Subsection A(14): “Convenience Stores”.  

Staff and the Plan Commission evaluated the request and considered the review criteria set forth in 
Section 400.2710 of the zoning code. The review criteria considered and evaluated during the 
meeting consisted of the following; 

1. The proposed use complies with the standards of this Chapter, including performance

standards, and the standards for motor vehicle-oriented businesses, if applicable, as

contained in Section 400.2730 of this Article;

2. The impact of projected vehicular traffic volumes and site access is not detrimental with

regard to the surrounding traffic flow, pedestrian safety, and accessibility of emergency

vehicles and equipment;

3. The proposed use will not cause undue impacts on the provision of public services such

as police and fire protection, schools, and parks;

4. Adequate utility, drainage and other such necessary facilities have been or will be

provided;

5. The proposed use is compatible with the surrounding area;

6. The proposed use will not adversely impact designated historic landmarks or districts

           Council Agenda Item Cover  

J - 3- 1



The Plan Commission held the required public hearing and considered the application on March 24, 
2021.  The C.U.P. was subsequently considered and approved by Plan Commission subject to the 
following condition; 

1. Required on-site parking be verified.

A C.U.P. does not require a public hearing at the City Council level.  For its approval, this agenda 
item would require a motion by the City Council.   

Attachments: 
1: Transmittal Letter from Plan Commission 
2: Staff Report  

RECOMMENDATION:  
The City Manager concurs with the approval and recommendation of the Planning Commission. 

J - 3- 2



 
 
March 24, 2021 
 
 
Ms. LaRette Reese 
City Clerk 
City of University City 
6801 Delmar Boulevard 
University City, MO 63130 
 
 
RE: Application for Conditional Use Permit PC 21-05 – Establishment and operation 

of a Convenience Store at 8326-8328 Olive Boulevard 
 
Dear Ms. Reese, 
 
At a regularly scheduled meeting, on March 24, 2021 at 6:30 pm via video conference, 
the Plan Commission considered the above-referenced application by Mount of Olives 
Ministry for a Conditional Use Permit to establish and operate a Convenience Store in the 
“GC” – General Commercial District. 
 
By a vote of 7 for and 0 against, the Plan Commission recommended approval of the 
application subject to the following condition; 
 

1. Verification of the required dedicated parking. 
 

 
Sincerely, 

 
Margaret Holly, Chairperson 
University City Plan Commission 

Department of Planning and Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 862-6767, Fax: (314) 862-3168   

J - 3- 3



Department of Planning and Development 
6801 Delmar Boulevard, University City, Missouri 63130, Phone: (314) 505-8500, Fax: (314) 862-3168 

STAFF REPORT 
(City Council) 

MEETING DATE:  April 26, 2021 

FILE NUMBER: PC 21-05 

COUNCIL DISTRICT: 3 

Location: 8326-8328 Olive Boulevard

Applicant: Mount Of Olives Ministry 

Property Owner: 8322 Olive Holdings LLC 

Request: Conditional Use Permit (C.U.P.) for a proposed  
Convenience / Grocery Store 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONFORMANCE 
[  ] Yes [  ] No  [ x ] No reference 

PLAN COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 
[ ] Approval [X ] Approval with Conditions [ ] Denial 

ATTACHMENTS: 
A. Application Packet

Existing Zoning: GC – General Commercial 
Existing Land Use:  Commercial   
Proposed Zoning:  No change – “GC” District 
Proposed Land Use: Commercial 

Surrounding Zoning and Current Land Use: 
North:  GC:  Commercial, (Commercial - FLU) 
East:  GC:      Commercial, (Commercial- FLU) 
South:  GC           Commercial (Commercial - FLU) 
West:  GC: Commercial (Commercial - FLU) 

J - 3- 4



 
 
Existing Property 
The existing site consists of a 10,000 square foot one story building. The parcel is 
approximately 15,820 square feet and is zoned General Commercial. Surrounding zoning 
is commercial. The lot includes approximately 20 dedicated parking spaces throughout 
the site.  
 
Parcel Location 

 
 
Surrounding Zoning 

 
 
 

8326-8328 Olive  

8326-8328 Olive  

J - 3- 5



 
 
Aerial Overhead 

 
 
Aerial Angle 

 
 
 
 
 

8326-8328 Olive 

8326-8328 Olive 

J - 3- 6



Front View 

 
 
Applicant’s Request 
The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit for a “Convenience Store”. The 
proposed use requires a CUP per Section 400.510 of the zoning ordinance. The applicant 
is proposing to consolidate the two suites resulting in total square footage of 
approximately 3,500 square feet for the proposed use. 
 
Process – Required City Approvals 
Plan Commission.  Section 400.2700.C of the Zoning Code requires that C.U.P. 
applications be reviewed by Plan Commission.  The Plan Commission shall make a 
recommendation to the City Council for their consideration.  A public hearing is required 
at the Plan Commission meeting. 
 
City Council.  Section 400.2700.D of the Zoning Code requires that C.U.P. applications 
be reviewed by City Council for the final decision, subsequent to the public hearing and 
recommendation from Plan Commission.  In conducting its review, City Council shall 
consider the staff report, Plan Commission’s recommendation, and application to 
determine if the proposed C.U.P. application meets the requirements of the Zoning Code. 
 
Other Processes 
Traffic Commission - The review criteria for a C.U.P. includes the impact of projected 
vehicular traffic volumes and site access with regard to the surrounding traffic flow, 
pedestrian safety, and accessibility of emergency vehicles and equipment.  In its capacity 
as an advisory commission on traffic related matters as per Section 120.420 of the 
Municipal Code, the Traffic Commission may be concerned with the parking and traffic 
impact of the project.   
 
 
 

J - 3- 7



Analysis 
The potential “Convenience Store” use would appear to have minimal impact on the 
surrounding neighborhood and uses based upon the surrounding commercial uses and 
prior use of the property. As a result, the use impact of the operation is consistent with 
the trend of development because of the existing uses surrounding the site.  
 
In evaluating the parking requirements, the schedule of parking requirements for this 
identified use is 1 per 200 square feet. The commercial uses, associated with the 
buildings within this area, utilize a combination of on site and shared parking. For this 
specific use the applicant would have to demonstrate the availability of 18 dedicated 
parking spaces. 
 

Public Works & Parks:  NA 
Fire Department:  NA 
Police Department:  NA 
 
Public Involvement 
A public hearing at a regular Planning Commission meeting is required by the Zoning 
Code.  The public hearing notice for the current proposal was published in the newspaper 
15 days prior to the meeting date and was mailed to property owners within 185 feet of 
the subject property.  Signage was also posted, at the subject property, with information 
about the public hearing.  Any member of the public will have an opportunity to express 
any concerns by writing in or attending the Planning Commission meeting. 
 
Review Criteria 
When evaluating a Conditional Use Permit the applicant is required to ensure that the 
following criteria is being met in accordance to the provisions set forth in Section 400.2710 
of the Zoning Code. The Criteria is as follows; 
 
1. The proposed use complies with the standards of this Chapter, including performance   
    standards, and the standards for motor vehicle-oriented businesses, if applicable, as  
    contained in Section 400.2730 of this Article; 
 
2. The impact of projected vehicular traffic volumes and site access is not detrimental with 

regard to the surrounding traffic flow, pedestrian safety, and accessibility of emergency 
vehicles and equipment; 

 
3. The proposed use will not cause undue impacts on the provision of public services 

such as police and fire protection, schools, and parks; 
 
4. Adequate utility, drainage and other such necessary facilities have been or will be  
    provided; 
 
5. The proposed use is compatible with the surrounding area; 
 
6. The proposed use will not adversely impact designated historic landmarks or districts; 

and 
 
7. Where a proposed use has the potential for adverse impacts, sufficient measures have 

been or will be taken by the applicant that would negate, or reduce to an acceptable 
J - 3- 8



level, such potentially adverse impacts. Such measures may include, but not 
necessarily be limited to: 

 
a. Improvements to public streets, such as provision of turning lanes, traffic 

control islands, traffic control devices, etc.; 
 

b.  Limiting vehicular access so as to avoid conflicting turning movements to/from 
the   site and access points of adjacent properties, and to avoid an increase in 
vehicular traffic in nearby residential areas; 

 
c.  Provision of cross-access agreement(s) and paved connections between the 

applicant's property and adjacent property(ies) which would help mitigate 
traffic on adjacent streets; 

 
d.  Provision of additional screening and landscape buffers, above and beyond 

the minimum requirements of this Chapter; 
 
e.  Strategically locating accessory facilities, such as trash storage, loading areas, 

and drive-through facilities, so as to limit potentially adverse impacts on 
adjacent properties while maintaining appropriate access to such facilities and 
without impeding internal traffic circulation; 

 
f.  Limiting hours of operation of the use or certain operational activities of the 

use (e.g., deliveries); and 
 
g.  Any other site or building design techniques which would further enhance 

neighborhood compatibility. 
 
Findings of Fact (Section 400.2720) 
The Plan Commission shall not recommend approval of a conditional use permit unless 
it shall, in each specific case, make specific written findings of fact based directly upon 
the particular evidence presented to it supporting the conclusion that the proposed 
conditional use: 
 
1. Complies with all applicable provisions of this Chapter; 
 
2. At the specific location will contribute to and promote the community welfare or     
    convenience; 
 
3. Will not cause substantial injury to the value of neighboring property; 
 
4. Is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, neighborhood development plan (if 

applicable), the Olive Boulevard Design Guidelines (if applicable), and any other official 
planning and development policies of the City; and 

 

J - 3- 9



5. Will provide off-street parking and loading areas in accordance with the standards  
    contained in Article VII of this Chapter 
 
Plan Commission Recommendation 
Based on the preceding considerations, the Plan Commission recommended approval of 
the application contingent upon the applicant verifying the dedication of the required 
parking spaces.  

J - 3- 10



____________________________________________________________________ 

_   MEETING DATE:      April 26, 2021  

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: An Ordinance Calling a Bond Election 

AGENDA SECTION: Unfinished Business - Bills 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? Yes  

PREPARED/SUBMITTED BY: City Manager Rose 

BACKGROUND REVIEW:     

This Bill calls a bond election on August 3, 2021 on the following proposition: 

PROPOSITION P 

Shall the City of University City, Missouri, issue its general obligation bonds in an amount up to 
Twenty Million Dollars ($20,000,000) for the purpose of renovating, improving, furnishing and 
equipping its municipal complex, including but not limited to improvements to the City Hall to 
improve building accessibility and ensure water tightness, improvements to the City Hall Annex to 
provide a permanent location for police operations, and improvements to the Trinity Building to 
provide a safe and secure location for municipal court activities and Council meetings? 

     The authorization of the bonds will authorize the levy and collection of an annual tax in addition 
to the other taxes provided for by law on all taxable tangible property in the City sufficient to pay 
the interest and principal of the bonds as they fall due and to retire the same within twenty years 
from the date thereof. 

RECOMMENDATION:   
City Manager recommends approval. 

Attachments: 
1. Bill No. 9430

  Council Agenda Item Cover 

K - 1 - 1



K - 1 - 2



BILL NO. 9430 ORDINANCE NO. _____ 
  
 

AN ORDINANCE CALLING A BOND ELECTION IN THE CITY 
OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, 

MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1.   The City Council of the City of University City, Missouri (the “City”) finds it 
necessary and hereby declares its intent to borrow up to $20,000,000 through the issuance of general 
obligation bonds for the purpose of renovating, improving, furnishing and equipping its municipal 
complex, including but not limited to improvements to the City Hall to improve building accessibility and 
ensure water tightness, improvements to the City Hall Annex to provide a permanent location for police 
operations, and improvements to the Trinity Building to provide a safe and secure location for municipal 
court activities and Council meetings (collectively, the “Project”). 

 
Section 2.   An election is hereby ordered to be held in the City on Tuesday, August 3, 2021, 

on the following proposition: 
 

PROPOSITION P 
 

Shall the City of University City, Missouri, issue its general 
obligation bonds in an amount up to Twenty Million Dollars 
($20,000,000) for the purpose of renovating, improving, furnishing 
and equipping its municipal complex, including but not limited to 
improvements to the City Hall to improve building accessibility and 
ensure water tightness, improvements to the City Hall Annex to 
provide a permanent location for police operations, and 
improvements to the Trinity Building to provide a safe and secure 
location for municipal court activities and Council meetings? 
 

The authorization of the bonds will authorize the levy and collection of an annual tax in addition to the 
other taxes provided for by law on all taxable tangible property in the City sufficient to pay the interest 
and principal of the bonds as they fall due and to retire the same within twenty years from the date 
thereof. 

 
Section 3.   The form of the Notice of Bond Election for the election, a copy of which is 

attached hereto as Exhibit A and made a part hereof, is hereby approved. 
 
Section 4.   A Debt Statement, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B and made a 

part hereof, setting forth the information required by Section 43 of the City’s Charter, is hereby approved. 
 

Section 5.   The City Clerk is hereby authorized and directed to notify the Board of Election 
Commissioners of St. Louis County, Missouri of the adoption of this Ordinance no later than 5:00 p.m. on 
May 25, 2021, and to include in the notification all of the terms and provisions required by Chapter 115 
of the Revised Statutes of Missouri, as amended, and the City’s Charter. 
 

Section 6.   The City expects to make expenditures on and after the date of adoption of this 
Ordinance in connection with the Project, and the City intends to reimburse itself for such expenditures 
with the proceeds of the bonds.  The maximum principal amount of bonds expected to be issued for the 
Project is $20,000,000. 

K - 1 - 3



Section 7.   The Mayor, the City Manager, the City Clerk and other officers and 
representatives of the City are hereby authorized and directed to take such other action as may be 
necessary to carry out the purpose and intent of this Ordinance. 

 
Section 8.   If any clause, word, paragraph, section or other part or portion of this Ordinance 

is held to be invalid, illegal or unconstitutional for any reason, the City Council hereby declares it would 
nevertheless have enacted the remaining portions thereof and such remaining portions shall remain in full 
force and effect. 
 

Section 9.   This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage as 
provided by law. 

 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of University City, Missouri, this ___ day of 

_______________, 2021. 
 
 
 
(SEAL)        
 Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
City Clerk 
 
 
CERTIFIED TO BE CORRECT AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 
City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
First reading:   
Second reading: 
 
 
 
 
 

K - 1 - 4



EXHIBIT A 
TO ORDINANCE 

 
 NOTICE OF BOND ELECTION 
 
 CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI 
 

Notice is hereby given to the qualified voters of the City of University City, Missouri, that the City 
Council of the City has called a special election to be held in the City on Tuesday, August 3, 2021, commencing 
at 6:00 a.m. and closing at 7:00 p.m., on the proposition contained in the following sample ballot:  
 
 OFFICIAL BALLOT 
 SPECIAL BOND ELECTION 
 CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI 
 
 TUESDAY, AUGUST 3, 2021 
 

PROPOSITION P 
 

Shall the City of University City, Missouri, issue its general obligation 
bonds in an amount up to Twenty Million Dollars ($20,000,000) for the 
purpose of renovating, improving, furnishing and equipping its municipal 
complex, including but not limited to improvements to the City Hall to 
improve building accessibility and ensure water tightness, improvements 
to the City Hall Annex to provide a permanent location for police 
operations, and improvements to the Trinity Building to provide a safe and 
secure location for municipal court activities and Council meetings? 
 

The authorization of the bonds will authorize the levy and collection of an annual tax in addition to the other 
taxes provided for by law on all taxable tangible property in the City sufficient to pay the interest and principal 
of the bonds as they fall due and to retire the same within twenty years from the date thereof. 

 
 YES  [  ] 
  NO   [  ] 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO VOTERS:  If you are in favor of the proposition, place an X in the box opposite 
“YES.”  If you are opposed to the proposition, place an X in the box opposite “NO.”  

 
The election will be held at the following polling places in the City:  

 
 PRECINCT POLLING PLACE 
 
 ____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
 
 ____________________________________ ____________________________________ 
 
 
DATED:  _______________. 

 
       

       Board of Election Commissioners 
       of St. Louis County, Missouri 

K - 1 - 5



K - 1 - 6



_____________________________________________________________________   

MEETING DATE: 

AGENDA ITEM TITLE: 

April 26, 2021 

A Resolution Approving a First Amendment to the Rights-of-Way 
Use Agreement 

With Level 3 Communications, L.L.C. 

AGENDA SECTION: New Business - Resolutions 

CAN THIS ITEM BE RESCHEDULED? Yes  

PREPARED/SUBMITTED BY: City Manager Rose 

BACKGROUND REVIEW:    

This Resolution approves a First Amendment to the Rights-of-Way Use Agreement and Settlement 
with Level 3 Communications, L.L.C.  

The City Council approved the original Agreement and Settlement on May 13, 2019, by Resolution 
2019-6. Level 3 paid $500,000 for its use of the rights-of-way through May 31, 2019, has paid 
$1,035.87 monthly thereafter for its continued use of the rights-of-way by installing, maintaining 
and operating facilities for communications or related capabilities. The term of the original 
Agreement was two years, through April 1, 2021. The First Amendment extends the term for 10 
years and provides for annual rights-of-way use fee increases in accordance with Ordinance No. 
7136 (12/14/2020).  

RECOMMENDATION:   
City Manager recommends approval. 

Attachments: 
Resolution 2021-6, including Exhibit A (First Amendment) 

  Council Agenda Item Cover 

L - 1 - 1



L - 1 - 2



 
 

RESOLUTION 2021-6 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE 
RIGHTS-OF-WAY USE AGREEMENT AND SETTLEMENT WITH 
LEVEL 3 COMMUNICATIONS, L.L.C. 

  
WHEREAS, on May 14, 2019, the City of University City (the “City”) entered into an agreement 
with Level 3 Communications, L.L.C. for use of the City’s rights-of-way for communications 
facilities (the “ROW Use Agreement”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the ROW Use Agreement’s term has expired and needs to be renewed; and 

 
WHEREAS, additional terms of the ROW Use Agreement also needed amendment to clarify 
certain actions the City Council has taken with respect to annual increases of linear foot fee rates 
for all users in the ROW; and   

 
WHEREAS, Level 3 Communications, L.L.C. also needed an amendment to the notice provision 
in the ROW Use Agreement; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council now desires to authorize the City Manager to enter into the First 
Amendment to ROW Use Agreement with Level 3 Communications, L.L.C. on behalf of the City. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Manager is hereby authorized to 
execute the First Amendment to the ROW Use Agreement between the City and Level 3 
Communications, L.L.C. in substantially the form of Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference. The City Manager and designees are further authorized to take such additional 
action as may be necessary or contemplated pursuant to this First Amendment to the ROW Use 
Agreement or to carry out the intent of this Resolution. 

 
ADOPTED THIS 26TH DAY OF APRIL, 2021.   
 
  
 By: ________________________________ 
            Terry Crow, Mayor  
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
LaRette Reese, City Clerk  
 
  

L - 1 - 3



 
 

Exhibit A 
 

First Amendment to Level 3 Communications, L.L.C. ROW Use Agreement 

L - 1 - 4



 
 

L - 1 - 5



 
 

 

L - 1 - 6


	Observe and/or Listen to the Meeting (your options to join the meeting are below):
	Or iPhone one-tap :
	US: +19292056099,,84263288695#  or +13017158592,,84263288695#
	Or Telephone:
	US: +1 929 205 6099  or +1 301 715 8592  or +1 312 626 6799  or +1 669 900 6833  or +1 253 215 8782  or +1 346 248 7799  or 888 788 0099 (Toll Free) or 877 853 5247 (Toll Free)
	Webinar ID: 842 6328 8695
	International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kbrTEAsUu8
	Citizen Participation and Public Hearing Comments:
	Blank Page
	D1 - 2021-04-12 Draft Study Minutes.pdf
	Blank Page

	D2 - 2021-04-12 Draft Regular Minutes w comments.pdf
	Blank Page

	I1- 1481 Sidewalk and Curb Replacement. docx.pdf
	Attachment 2 - Project 1481 Bid Tab.pdf
	Sheet1

	Blank Page

	J1 - 3rd Qtr Financial Report Agenda Cover.pdf
	3rd Qtr March 31, 2021 FY2021 Presentation.pdf
	������������������3rd Quarter MARCH 31, 2021� �FY2021 Presentation�
	�General Fund - Revenues
	General Fund - Expenditures
	Capital Improvement Sales Tax - Revenues
	Capital Improvement Sales Tax - Expenditures
	Park and Stormwater Sales Tax - Revenues
	Park and Stormwater Sales Tax - Expenditures
	Public Safety Sales Tax - Revenues
	Public Safety Sales Tax - Expenditures
	Slide Number 10

	Qrtly Report -3rd Qtr FY21 - Statement of Rev & Exp.pdf
	3rd Quarter
	3rd Qtr Pension Fds
	Library

	Blank Page

	K1 - Bill 9430 - Bond Ordinance.pdf
	Bill 9430 - Bond Ordinance (August 2021).pdf
	NOTICE OF BOND ELECTION
	CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI
	OFFICIAL BALLOT
	SPECIAL BOND ELECTION
	CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI
	YES  [  ]
	DEBT STATEMENT

	Blank Page

	L1 - Res 2021-6 All.pdf
	Blank Page

	2021-04-26 Council Agenda.pdf
	Observe and/or Listen to the Meeting (your options to join the meeting are below):
	Or iPhone one-tap :
	US: +19292056099,,84263288695#  or +13017158592,,84263288695#
	Or Telephone:
	US: +1 929 205 6099  or +1 301 715 8592  or +1 312 626 6799  or +1 669 900 6833  or +1 253 215 8782  or +1 346 248 7799  or 888 788 0099 (Toll Free) or 877 853 5247 (Toll Free)
	Webinar ID: 842 6328 8695
	International numbers available: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kbrTEAsUu8
	Citizen Participation and Public Hearing Comments:

	I1- 1481 Sidewalk and Curb Replacement. docx.pdf
	Attachment 2 - Project 1481 Bid Tab.pdf
	Sheet1

	Blank Page

	J1 - 3rd Qtr Financial Report Agenda Cover.pdf
	3rd Qtr March 31, 2021 FY2021 Presentation.pdf
	������������������3rd Quarter MARCH 31, 2021� �FY2021 Presentation�
	�General Fund - Revenues
	General Fund - Expenditures
	Capital Improvement Sales Tax - Revenues
	Capital Improvement Sales Tax - Expenditures
	Park and Stormwater Sales Tax - Revenues
	Park and Stormwater Sales Tax - Expenditures
	Public Safety Sales Tax - Revenues
	Public Safety Sales Tax - Expenditures
	Slide Number 10

	Qrtly Report -3rd Qtr FY21 - Statement of Rev & Exp.pdf
	3rd Quarter
	3rd Qtr Pension Fds
	Library

	Blank Page

	J2 - Complete CC Packet Facility Use Agreement.pdf
	CC Cover Sheet Agreement proposal
	2021 MAFM_U CITY_FACILITY USE AGREE 2021-2-16 (draft) Revised For Barriers

	Complete CC Packet For 8326 Olive CUP.pdf
	CC_Cover_8326 Olive Blvd CUP
	PC Transmittal Letter, CUP 21-05 8326 Olive
	CUP_CC_21-05 8326-8328 Olive staff Report

	K1 - Bill 9430 - Bond Ordinance.pdf
	Bill 9430 - Bond Ordinance (August 2021).pdf
	NOTICE OF BOND ELECTION
	CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI
	OFFICIAL BALLOT
	SPECIAL BOND ELECTION
	CITY OF UNIVERSITY CITY, MISSOURI
	YES  [  ]
	DEBT STATEMENT

	Blank Page

	L1 - Res 2021-6 All.pdf
	Blank Page




